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PREFACE 

In February 2000 CHAD was asked by the University of Delaware and the Delaware 
Technology Park to help to sort out a deed trace that had been done for the Delaware 
Technology Park @TP) in Newark, Delaware. Recent construction at the site had 
uncovered historical material and the owners were interested in identifling other areas on 
the property that might have archaeological material. 

An Environmental Site Assessment report for the site had been prepared in January 1999 
by a site engineer and this report included a partial deed trace for the DTP. The trace 
became incomplete and inaccurate as the deeds stepped back into the early twentieth 
century. 

Using modern maps, historic maps, tax assessments, Orphan’s Court Records, wills, and 
deeds it was possible for CHAD staff to trace the site for the Delaware Technology Park 
back from the current owner, the University of Delaware, to David McMichen, who 
inherited the property from his father James in 1767. With the line of ownership intact, it 
was possible to draw conclusions about the potential areas where archaeological material 
might be found and to identifl the archaeological material the construction crew had 
uncovered in the current phase of construction. 

This report includes a narrative description of the chain of ownership for the property and 
some of the conclusions that can be drawn from that lineage. A complete set of deeds and 
several other pieces of documentary evidence are included in the Appendix. 

... 
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I. Property Description and Historic Context 

The Delaware Technology Park (DTP) is located on a 3 1.66 acre parcel owned by 
the University of Delaware and located partially within the City of Newark and partially 
in the White Clay Creek Hundred in New Castle County, Delaware, Located on the east 

side of Newark along Route 273, the current parcel is bounded to the north by a new road 
called Innovation Way; to the west by Route 72; to the south by the Philadelphia, 
Baltimore and Washington Railroad, Pomeroy Branch; and to the east by Marrows Road, 
historically known as Morrow’s Road after a wealthy property owner in this area. The 
property the Delaware Technology Park now owns is a significant property in the history 
of the City of Newark, associated with several prominent Newark families the past two 
centuries. 

In 1757 James McMichen and other prominent merchants and farmers in White 
Clay Creek Hundred, New Castle County, petitioned William Denny, then acting 

Governor of the counties known as Delaware, to create the first Charter for the Village of 
Newark.’ McMichen owned a large farm that defined the east side of the village along 
the “great road” running out of Newark, present-day Route 273. James McMichen 
passed his land on to his son, David McMichen, in 1767 and David McMichen passed the 
same land to his son, James W. McMichen, in 1794. In 1796, James McMichen sold 221 
acres of property to Joseph Burns. In New Castle County tax assessments for the years 
1798 and 1803, Joseph Burns was assessed for 222 acres of land valued at $1 110 and 
$1 188 respectively. No houses or out buildings were listed in those assessments. In 
1806, Burns purchased an adjoining parcel of property noted in the deed as beginning at a 

stone along the “great road . . . through Newark” and two years later, sold the entire 
property to Frederick Holtzbecker. 

In tax assessments for the year 18 17, Frederick Holtzbecker owned 282 acres of 
land with a large brick house, stone kitchen, and log barn. A successhl local farmer, 
Holtzbecker had helped to organize a lottery in 18 1 1 to raise hnds for improvement to 

’ J. Thomas Scharf, History of Delaware: 1609-1888, Philadelphia: 1888, L. J. Richards & Co., p. 942. 
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the main road from Newark and the for renovation of the market house.’ The property 
remained in the Holtzbecker family until Frederick’s son Lewis sold the property to long 
time neighbor Rothwell Wilson in 184 1. The 1849 Rea & Price Atlas (Figure 1) 
identified R. Wilson as the owner of the tract along “the great road from Newark.,” the 
same tract where the Delaware Technology Park is currently located. Personal ties 
between the Holtzbeckers and Wilsons remained close and in 1853, Eliza Holtzbecker, 

Frederick’s only daughter, appeared to receive 1 14 acres from Rothwell Wilson as a gift 
and purchased the remaining 168 acres to regain the entire parcel her father had owned. 
This is the first indication of the property being split into two parcels described as Parcel 
1 (168 acres) and Parcel 2 (1 14 acres). These two parcels can be seen in Figure 3. 

Four years later the property along the great road was sold from the Holtzbecker 
family permanently when William Motheral purchased both parcels from Elka 
Holtzbecker. In 1868 Motheral appeared as the owner of this property, named the 
c‘Hermitage’7 (Figure 2). William Motheral died in 1872; and under an Orphan’s Court 

decree his ‘TIermitage” was sold to William Homewood. Figure 3 shows a map drawn of 
Motheral’s property for the Orphan’s Court. Parcel 1 lay to the north of the railroad and 
contained 165 acres and a brick house; Parcel 2 fell to the south of the railroad, 
containing 112 acres and a frame house. These designations match those established by 
Eliza Holtzbecker’s transactions with Rothwell Wilson. The brick house on Parcel 1 was 
probably the one built by Frederick Holtzbecker around 18 10 and the frame house on 
Parcel 2 was likely built in the late 1840s - early 1850s by Eliza Holtzbecker on the land 
given back to her by Rothwell Wilson. 

William Homewood owned this property until his death in 1892. His neighbor to 
the north and east was James Morrow; the two men swapped small pieces of property 
back and forth over Homewood’s twenty-year ownership. James Morrow was a wealthy 
property owner in the White Clay CreeMNewark area and the current Marrows Road was 

originally named Morrow Road after his family. 
the Hopkins Atlas (Figure 4) as the owner of a 298-acre property, located along “the 
great road from Newark“ to the east of a 277-acre parcel owned by William Homewood. 
The same Hopkins Atlas also showed that William Homewood’s property contained two 

In 188 1 James Morrow appeared on 

Bid. p.943. 
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houses and an establishment called “Homewood’s Driving Park.” Francis Cooch’s 

writings on the history of Newark mention that there was a trotting track on Homewood’s 
farm that had been popular since the 1860’~~ 

After Homewood’s death, an Orphan’s Court decree forced the sale of his 
property to pay his debts and James Morrow bought the part of the property identified as 
“Parcel 1 ” in the decree, containing 162 acres. When James Morrow died in 1900, all of 
his property was divided among his adult children and in 1901 Lewis Morrow purchased 
this lot from his siblings. Two years later, Lewis sold the 162-acre parcel to George 
Huber, who owned the farm until his death. In 1924 Samuel and Cora Dameron 
purchased the farm from Huber’s estate and owned the property until 1938, when the 
Chrysler Corporation purchased property from several families in the area. It was 
probably during the Chrysler period of ownership that the Frederick Holtzbecker’s large 
brick dwelling on Eliza Holtzbecker’s ‘Parcel 1” was demolished. Chrysler sold an 84- 

acre parcel to the Manor Real Estate Company in 1946 who in turn sold it to the 
University of Delaware in 1966 and it is on this property that the DTP was constructed. 
Table 1 shows the complete chain of title for this property. 

Using the metes and bounds description included in the deeds it was possible to 
draw the boundaries of several of the key deeds. Overlaying these on a USGS map and 
comparing them to historic maps like Beers, Hopkins, and Rea & Price, it was also 
possible to reconstruct an outline of ownership of the larger property on which the 
Delaware Technology Park is now constructed. Figures 5 through 8 show these deeds 
and their respective owners overlaid on the USGS quad for Newark- East. Many modern 
roadways and neighborhood developments are reflective of the original pattern and lines 

of property ownership in this area. 
In reviewing the construction at the DTP site, the continuation of Wyoming Road, 

the new road called Innovation Way, cuts across the Holtzbecker property in the middle 
of Parcel 1. The BioTech Building currently under construction falls almost exactly 
where William Motheral’s Orphan’s Court map (Figure 3) places the large brick 
dwelling. It is very possible that the bricks and foundations found during the excavation 

Francis A. Cooch, Little Known History of Newark, Delaware and Its Environs, Newark Delaware: 1936, 3 

Francis Cooch pub., p. 177. 
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are fi-om this dwelling. There are also several out-buildings including a barn with a stone 
basement (Frederick Holtzbeckers stone kitchen?), a granary, a carriage house and an ice 
house listed as being part of Motheral’s property and located on the Parcel- 1, These 

would have been in some proximity to the main brick house and might also be part of the 
archaeological material being found on this site. 

Table 1 : Deed Trace 

Name of Owner 

David M c  
Michen 
James W. 
McMichen 
Joseph Burns 

Joseph Bums 

Frederick 
Holtzbecker 

Lewis 
Holtzbecker 
George 
Holtzbecker 

Lewis 
Holtzbecker 

Rothwell Wilson 

Eliza 
Holtzbecker 

Description of 
transaction 
Inherits property 
fi-om hther James 
Inherits Property 
from father David 
Purchases property 
from James M c  
Michen 221 ac. 
Purchases property 
from Jean Bailey -20 
ac. 
Purchases property 
from Jos. B u m  282 
ac. 
Eliza Holtzbecker 
Henry Holtzbecker 
Inherited property 
from Frederick 
Holtzbecker 
282 ac. 
Purchased all from 
George Holtzbecker 

Purchased property 
from Lewis 
Holtzbecker 282 ac. 
Purchased property 
from Rothwell 
Wilson 168 ac 
recorded 114 
unrecorded. This is 
where the first 
indication of the split 
property. 

Date 

1767 

1794 

1796 

1806 

1808 

1834 

1835 

1841 

1853 

P2 260 

D 3 281 

G 3 270 

S 4 123 

W 4 248? 

G 5  175 

0 6 220 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Not 
found 

X 

X 

Map Reference 

Rea Price 1849 “R. 
Wilson” 
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William 
Motheral 

Homewood 

Morrow 
tiG&GG- I JamesMorrow 

I------ Lewis Morrow 

Samuel and Cora 
Dameron 

George Hering 

Samuel and Cora 
Dameron 
Chrysler Corp. 

F University of I 

Purchased 2 parcels 
fi-om Eliza 
Holtzbecker 
Parcel 1 168 ac. 
Parcel 2 1 14 ac 
282 total 
Acquired in 
Orphan’s Court 
settlement in 1872 

Homewood 
Morrow 3 ac. 
Morrow purchases 
parcel 1 - 162 acres 
fi-om the estate of 
Homewood as 
shown in Orphan’s 
Court Decree 
James C. Morrow et 
al. Parcel 1 162 ac. 
Lewis Morrow 
Parcel 1 162 ac. 
George Huber’s 
heirs 
Parcel 1 162 ac. 
Samuel and Cora 
Dameron 
162 ac. 
George Hering 
162 ac. 
Dameron 
64.99 ac 
Dameron 
Chrysler 
84.208 ac 
Manor Real Estate 
Trust 
83.084 ac. 

1857 

1872 

1875 
1875 
1892 

1901 

1903 

1924 

1937 

1937 

1938 

1943 
1944 

1966 

Y 6 475 X 

Orphan’s Court 
Records Vol. 
2 - pp 277-283 

Q 19206 X 

S40390 X I---- 
V43 116 I 
M4660 l x  

Beers Atlas 1868 
‘W Motheral” 

Hopkins 1881 - “ 
Wm Homewood 277 
ac.” Neighbor is Jas. 
Morrow 
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Figure 1 : M a p  of N e w  Castle County, Delaware, Samuel Rea and Jacob Price, published 

by Smith & Wilson, 1849, detail of White Clay Creek Hundred. 
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Figure 2: Atlas of the State of Delaware, published by Pomeroy & Beers, 1868, detail of 
White Clay Creek Hundred. 
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Figure 3: M a p  drawn for William Motheral’s Orphan Court decree. 1872. Note the 
designations for parcels “No. 1” and “N0.2”. These are parcels acquired by Eliza 

Holtzbecker from Rothwell Wilson. 
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Figure 4: M a p  of N e w  Castle County, Delaware, published by G.M. Hopkins, 188 1, 
detail of White Clay Creek Hundred. 
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Parcels No. 1 and No2 refer to the deed information included in the appendix, not to 
those mentioned in the narrative. 
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Figure 8: 1993 USGS Ma p  Newark-East Quad with deed overlay- Morrow - 1892. 
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Appendix 

Deeds, Orphan’s Court Records, and N e w  Castle County Tax Assessments. 
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